M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 12, 2001
10: 21 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 35, Side A
SFC 01 # 35, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the neeting at approximately 10:21
AM

PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Lenman

Senator Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Al so Attending: BILL CHURCH, staff to Co-Chair Donley; ANNALEE
MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget, O fice of the
Governor; CAM TOOHEY, Executive Director, Arctic Power; LARRY
PERSI LY, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnment of Revenue; DAN SPENCER,
Director, Division of Admnistrative Services, Departnment of
Adm ni stration; NANCY SLAGE, Drector, D vision of Admnistrative
Servi ces, Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

Attending via Tel econference: From Anchorage: MLTON WLTZ,
Director, Dyvision of Geological and Geophysical Surveys,
Department of Natural Resources; HAROLD H ENZ, 30-year Al askan
resident, testified via teleconference from Anchorage; JOHN DOYLE,
Northern Forum KEN FREEMAN, Special Assistant, Gasline and
Busi ness Devel opnent, Ofice of the Governor; From Kenai: PAUL
SHADURA

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

HB 117- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS: FAST TRACK

SFC- 01 (1) 03/ 12/ 01



The Conmittee took public testinony and al so heard fromthe Ofice
of Managenent and Budget, the Departnent of Adm nistration, the
Department of Revenue and the Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities. A conmmttee substitute was adopted, six
anendnents were considered and three were adopted. The bill was
held in Commttee.

#HB117

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 117(FIN) am
"An Act naking supplenental and other appropriations; and
providing for an effective date."

Co- Chair Donl ey announced that public testinmony would be taken at
this time. Afterwards, he stated that the Commttee woul d recess
with the intent of working on a commttee substitute.

MLTON WLTSE, Director, D vision of Ceological and CGeophysica
Surveys, Depart nent of Nat ur al Resour ces, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks in support of the departnent's
suppl enmental request for the purpose of obtaining and anal yzing
engi neering geol ogi cal information along the proposed natural gas
pi peline corridor. He stated the need to al so conduct a prelimnary
inventory of construction nmaterials to prepare for the gas line
project. He pointed out the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities has experienced problens during construction phases
because of shortages in construction materials. He shared that the
Department of Natural Resources is assisting the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities in assenbling construction
mat eri al s, which would save noney with contracting costs.

M. WIltse continued that although nuch of the construction would
occur during the next fiscal year, funds were needed this fiscal
year to begin the hiring process.

HAROCLD  HI ENZ, 30-year Al askan resi dent, testified Vi a
tel econference from Anchorage, to share his observation regarding
funding for natural gas pipeline related activities. He told the
Commttee that he has worked for both the oil industry and for the
State of Al aska and that he currently provides consulting services
for resource devel opnent and nanagenent devel opnent. Hi's concern
was not with the anmount of noney involved, but rather the
conditions under which it is spent. He asserted that during the
recent discussions on North Sl ope gas devel opnent, the enpl oynent
i ssue was being overlooked by both the political system and the
i ndustry. Wiile he had heard "rhetoric" on the issue of Al askan

SFC- 01 (2) 03/ 12/ 01



individuals and contractors enploynent, he stressed that the
Adm ni stration and the industry has m ssed the opportunity to hire
qualified Alaskans. He opined that this |ack of denonstration by
the political system and the corporations would inpact public
support in the long-term He asserted that the public mstrusts the
state and the industry and would not support such efforts unless
convi nced of the enploynent benefits to A askans. He suggested that
the legislature convey that the noney be spent in Alaska wth
Al askans and Al askan contractors. He added that Arctic Power nust
denonstrate how the Al askan workforce would benefit from the
pi pel i ne.

JOHN DOYLE, Northern Forum testified via teleconference from
Anchorage to describe the organi zation he represented. He shared
that the funding for the forum conmes fromits nenbers, half of
whi ch are Russian. He spoke of the difficulties with the Russian
participants to secure funding for their portion of the
contribution due in part to the reduction in State of Al aska
fundi ng. He requested reinstatenent of the state funding.

Senator Leman asked if the wtness had assurance that the other
menbers of the forum would pay their dues. He stated that he had
heard threats of others w thhol ding paynent.

M . Doyl e expected all participants would pay their dues and told
of upcom ng neetings where the i ssue would be discussed. He noted
that all nmenbers have paid dues regularly until this year.

Senator W1 ken requested M. Heinze provide exanples of the points
he had raised in his testinony regarding the m ssed opportunities
to hire Al askans.

M. Heinze stated he had an exanple from Novenber 2000 regarding
the Alaska G| and Gas Conservation Conm ssion (ACSCC), the details
of which he woul d share.

PAUL SHADURA testified via tel econference fromKenai regarding the
Departnent of Fish and Gane reappropriation of funds fromthe Kenai
Ri ver Managenent Plan to the Board of Fisheries. He stressed upon
the high costs to those who would wish to participate in the
upcom ng Board neeting given the short notice. He enphasized the
nerits of the Kenai River study. He referred to the Kenai- Sol dot na
Fish and Gane Advisory Commttee resolution he had submtted [copy
on file.]

Co-Chair Donley recessed the neeting to the call of the chair,
whi ch he anticipated to be at 1: 00 pm

SFC- 01 (3) 03/ 12/ 01



AT EASE 10:40 AM/ 1:25 PM

Co-Chair Donley drew the nenbers' attention to a proposed commttee
substitute, Version "T". He detail ed the changes as foll ows.

Section 1 — reduces the appropriation to the Departnent of
Admi ni stration from $195,000 to $100, 000 adds the flexibility
of using the appropriation for nurses assistants as well as
nur ses

Section 2 — changes | apse date of the grant to Arctic Power
from June 30, 2006 to June 30, 2002 - also appropriates
$90, 000 general funds to the Northern Forum for operating
costs.

Section 4 — new section, adds $26,000 general funds to the
Department of Environnental Conservation, for tenporary
personnel to provide services to the State Pipeline
Coordinator's Ofi ce.

Section 5 (b) and (c) — previously addressed a reappropriation
of prior Kenai Area Plan funds to the Alaska Board of
Fisheries. Version "T" elimnates the reappropriation and
replaces the appropriation with general funds.

Section 5 (d) — new subsection appropriates $23,900 general
funds to the Departnment of Fish and Gane, for tenporary
personnel to provide services for +the State Pipeline
Coordinator’s Ofi ce.

Section 6 — deleted the $14, 300 general fund appropriation to
the O fice of Governnental Coordination.

Section 7 (c) - new subsection appropriates $325, 000 general
fund/nmental health funds, to the Departnent of Health and
Social Services, to support suicide prevention efforts
st at ew de.

Section 8 (b) — new subsection appropriates $150, 000 gener al
funds to the Departnent of Law for contractual |egal services
relating to the devel opnment and transportati on of Al aska North
Sl ope natural gas.

Section 11 (a) — new subsection appropriates $75, 000 general
funds to the Departnent of Natural Resources for the study of
a royalty in-kind Alaska North Sl ope gas marketing strategy
and in-state natural gas denmand.

Section 11 (b) - new subsection appropriates $30, 000 general
funds to the Departnent of Natural Resources for a gas
pi pel i ne suppl y-side study.

Section 11 (c) — new subsection appropriates $50, 000 gener al
funds to the Departnent of Natural Resources for a North Sl ope
gas sal es reservoir studies.

Section 11 (d) — new subsection appropriates $140,000 genera
funds to the Departnent of Natural Resources to fill vacant
positions and purchase software for the Division of Ol and

SFC- 01 (4) 03/ 12/ 01



Gas.

Section 11 (e) — new subsection appropriates $192, 000 genera
funds to the Departnent of Natural Resources for seismc data
acquisition interpretation.

Section 12 (f) — new subsection appropriates $293, 600 genera
funds to the Departnment of Natural Resources for personnel
contractual services and equipnent to the State Pipeline
Coordinator's Ofi ce.

Section 12 (a) — reduces and repl aces the appropriation to the
Department of Revenue, Tax Division from general funds to
$400, 000 statutory designated programreceipts.

Section 12 (c) — new subsection appropriates $25, 000 general
funds to the Departnent of Revenue, for a contractual study of
the state's fiscal regine for developnent of North Slope
nat ural gas.

Co-Chair Donley pointed out that the total appropriation for
natural gas devel opnent purposes is $1, 025, 500.

Co-Chair Kelly noved for adoption of SCS CS HB 117, 22-GHL085\T,
3/12/01 as a working draft.

Wt hout objection, the commttee substitute was ADOPTED as a work
draft.

Co-Chair Kelly asked the total appropriation in this fast track for
oil and gas permtting and preparation for any pipeline related
activities.

Bl LL CHURCH, staff to Co-Chair Donley, stated that the governor's
original fast track request was $1,960,000 for oil and gas
devel opnent. He continued that the House of Representative's fast
track appropriated "a blanket" $600,000. The ampunt proposed in the
committee substitute, he shared, totals $693,500, of which,
$330,000 is for various studies to lay the foundation for future
review of the pipeline efforts.

Co-Chair Donley explained that this version takes the anount
granted in the House of Representatives' fast track version and
appropriates the funds for the specific studies proposed in the
governor's request. He pointed out that additional funds are
appropriated to "beef up" the Division of Gl and Gas in the State
Pi peline Coordinator's Ofice.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the amount reduced from the original
request was nostly for duplicated agency activities.

M. Church replied that there was a question of whether some of the

SFC- 01 (5) 03/ 12/ 01



functions were i medi ate. He spoke of updated information received
by the Ofice of Managenent and Budget relating to the amounts
appropriated by the House of Representatives. As a result, he
stated, the commttee substitute is able to take a nore detail ed
appr oach.

Senat or Hof f man requested feedback fromthe Ofice of Managenent
and Budget on the proposed changes in the commttee substitute.

ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget,
Ofice of the Governor, clarified that the updated information M.
Church referred to is not a revised request but rather an
i ndi cation of how the | ower amount of funds would be utilized if
that was all appropriated. She pointed out that a nunber of
requested conponents were not included and that the commttee
substitute allows little flexibility. For exanple, she said, it
could be found that a particular study would cost nore than the
appropriated anount to conplete, while another could be done with
|l ess than the allocated funds. She understood the Committee's
interest in stipulating where the funds are spent, but surm sed
that the Adm nistration needs flexibility to make changes where
necessary.

CAM TOCHEY, Executive Director, Arctic Power, supported the | apse
date change in Section 1 of the commttee substitute. He also
supported the proposed Anendnent #1 [description to follow, which
all ocates $100,000 to the Gty of Kaktovik. He spoke of the efforts
and the strain on the comunity caused by film crews and others
traveling through the city to visit the Arctic National Wldlife
Reserve (ANWR). He also supported the proposed Anmendnent #4
[description to follow explaining that activities were occurring
in certain congressional areas across the country to provide
education about oil exploration and devel opnent in ANVR

Senator W/ ken understood the constraints on Arctic Power regarding
sharing its strategy for spending the appropriated $1.5 mllion,
but requested sonme general information as to how the group would
expend t he funds.

M. Toohey replied that the Al aska Congressi onal Del egation, along
with Arctic Power and the governor's office, have devised a plan
for using $4 nillion for education related to the opening of ANWR
He pointed out that the approximately $2 million in public funds
woul d be matched with private funds.

M. Toohey detailed the situation in the US Congress where the

majority of both houses support opening the coastal plain of ANWR
poi nting out that |egislation has been introduced in both bodies

SFC- 01 (6) 03/ 12/ 01



and woul d advance quickly. He noted that for the first tine in
eight years, the federal admnistration is in support of this
endeavor. He added that efforts would be nmade to maintain and
strengt hen the congressional support, which he stressed requires a
"tremendous anount of effort.” He explained that the environnental
community has identified vul nerable congressional districts to try
to sway. As a response, he enphasized the need to continue to
provi de education, staff and nedia pressure. He noted that in any
gi ven day, the nedia reports on the environnental aspects of ANVWAR
whi ch he said gives opportunity for rebuttal. These opportunities,
he stressed, should not be m ssed.

M . Toohey rel ayed that Washi ngton DC "has got a whol e new energy
| evel for ANWAR than we've seen in a long tine." He attributed this
to the issue's attention during the presidential canpaign.

Senator W/ ken requested educating the general public about the
t echnol ogi cal advances in exploration and devel opnent.

M . Toohey responded that advanci ng technol ogy, and the ability to
protect the environment and wildlife, is included in the education
efforts.

Senator Leman referred to three or four national comentators
speaking on the ANWR issue "which they know nothing about"”. He
surmsed that this is a result of the information they have
received for many years. He asked if Arctic Power was nmaking
efforts to clarify the facts, so the foruns could discuss the facts
rat her than the m sconcepti ons.

M. Toohey stated that the first priority of the group is to
respond to inaccurate statenents and supply correct and factua
information. He admtted it would not be easy and would continue to
be an issue.

Senat or Lenman asked how to get such commentators to "set the record
straight."”

M. Toohey replied that Arctic Power attenpts to either respond
with a reciprocal opinion piece, or multiple letters to the editor.
He noted that the first step is to respond to the negative, and the
second step involves proactive steps. Media tours to Kaktovik and
the Refuge, he stated are a large part of the proactive efforts.

Senat or Hof fman noted that the $2 million appropriation is "quite

broad" but that Arctic Power would like flexibility in order to
acconplish its m ssion.

SFC- 01 (7) 03/ 12/ 01



M . Toohey affirned.

Senator Ward stated that he spoke to the mayor of Kaktovik and
asked about the working relationship between Arctic Power and the
community. He wanted assurance that both were working "toward the
sanme end." He requested exanples of these efforts.

M. Toohey replied that tours of ANWR depart from Kaktovi k. He al so
poi nted out that a nenber of Arctic Power's Board of Directors is
from Kaktovi k. He stated the city has "one of the strongest voices
for developnent in the state,”" would be a part of the programin
Washi ngton DC and has an active web site that provides information

about the city as well. He stressed that "they are very
i ndependent, they want to do it thensel ves because they feel they
have a good story to tell."” He predicted that the allocation in

Amendrent #1 woul d assist the city's efforts considerably.

Senat or Austerman appreciated this witness’ presence. He noted that
they had neet earlier in the day and that the questions he raised
at a previous hearing were answered.

LARRY PERSILY, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue,
addressed his comments to Section 12 of the commttee substitute,
regardi ng the $400, 000 appropriation to the Tax D vision. He noted
t he funding source for $200,000 of that was changed to statutory
designated program receipts. He was unclear where the program
recei pts woul d be received.

Co-Chair Donley replied, "the sanme place the House was intending to
get the funds from"

M. Persily relayed that when the bill was before the House Fi nance
Comm ttee, the dispute involved the property tax assessnent at
Prudhoe Bay production facilities. The question in that instance,
he stated, was whether the North Sl ope Borough would be required to
assist the state in paying for the defense against the oi
conpanies as to what the property is worth. He pointed out that
this dispute has been settled and the funds were now requested to
address the dispute over the property assessnent on the Al yeska
Pipeline. He stated that the communities along the pipeline route
have organi zed to maintain that the pipeline is worth significantly
nore than the state assessnent. As a result, he opined, the
comunities would be unwilling to share in the state's defense
because it is not in their best interest. He said that the
departnment woul d therefore prefer general funds.

Senat or Hof f man spoke to correspondence he recei ved dated February
27, 2001, saying the difference in the appraisals could be "in the

SFC- 01 (8) 03/ 12/ 01



billions of dollars.” He continued that each billion-dollar
reduction in the assessnent represents approximately $20 mllion in
annual tax revenue to the state.

M. Persily affirmed and noted that every one billion dollars in
property assessnent at the 20-ml| rate, is worth $20 mllion. He
remarked that the cities located along the pipeline corridor
receive the difference between the state's collection and the 20-
ml| rate cap. This he explained, is the reason the cities want a
hi gher tax assessnent.

Senat or Hof f man suggested that "nickel and dim ng" the funding for
this tax assessnent process did not make sense given the |arge
anount of revenue at stake.

Senat or Austerman asked how many of the organi zed boroughs al ong
the pipeline route were under the 20-m| cap.

M. Persily responded that all were included and said he would
provi de specific informati on about the tax rates for each borough.
He noted that in the case of the Prudhoe Bay facility, the state
was arguing that the facility was worth nore than the challenge. In
this case, he stated, the state's argunent is that the pipeline is
worth | ess than the chall enge, but nore than the producers claim

Senator WIlken clarified the dispute addressed in the origina
suppl enent al budget request has been settled. He requested a copy
of the settlenent. He then asked about the dispute before the
Comm ttee at the current date.

M. Persily responded that the assessnent of the Prudhoe Bay
facility was for the replacenent cost and that the argunment was
made that a replacenent facility would be worth less than the
existing facility.

SFC 01 # 35, Side B 01:56 PM

M. Persily continued that the pipeline dispute involves "nore of a
| egal and economic interpretation” stating that the |egal advice
given to the cities, predict the line is worth twice the state’s
assessnent. He stated that the state disagrees with the cities'
interpretation of the governing statutes.

Senator WI ken knew the matter was a "bone of contention" since the

assessnent depreciated by eight percent while the sanme anount of
oi | was punped through the pipeline. He shared that he woul d neet

SFC- 01 (9) 03/ 12/ 01



Wi th representatives of the Fairbanks North Star Borough to |earn
their stand on the issue.

Senat or Hof f man spoke to the budget request, noting the departnent
pl anned four expenditures, the first being $100,000 for the
enpl oynment of expertise to evaluate the econom c assunptions to
respond to the challenge. He listed the second part of the request
for $200,000 to hire technical and | egal expertise to address the
cities' argunent that "the state should have the val ue of the task
using the exceptions found in the statutes.” The third and forth
expendi tures, he continued, is $50,000 to prepare and independently
verify the backup of the historical assessnent, and $50,000 for
conti ngency purposes. He wanted to know if the departnent received
only $200, 000, how much it could acconpli sh.

M. Persily replied that the departnent would continue to work on
the project until the noney was depleted. He said the situation
woul d then be reanalyzed and the departnent would return to the
| egi slature to argue the case for additional funds.

Senator Leman referred to the wtness' testinony that the
comunities would not desire the state to win. He countered that it
actually would be in the nunicipalities' interest for the state's
defense to be solid since the state assessnent is higher than the
producer's.

M. Persily supposed that could be true. However, he did not think
that city council nenbers would approve of giving the state noney
with a condition that it only be used to defend the state's case
agai nst the producers but not to defend against the municipalities
chal | enge. He surmsed that by winning their challenge, the
municipalities would earn nore revenue at the state's expense.

DAN SPENCER, Director, Dyvision of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Administration testified to Section 1 of the
committee substitute that appropriates $100,000 to the depart ment
for the increased cost of salaries for nurses. He noted that the
governor's request was $198,000 and that the House of
Representatives reduced it to $195,000. He stated that the House
appropriation was based on the assunption that all the nursing
positions would be filled. However, he noted that this did not
account for the overtinme accrued by the existing nurses. He
stressed that these overtine costs exceed the total cost of all the
positions if the vacant positions were filled. He explained that to
conpensate for the five vacant positions, existing nurses were paid
overtime to cover all shifts. He was unsure if the intent was for
the departnment to use the fast track funds over the next two nonths
and then request the remai nder of the funds during deliberations on

SFC-01 (10) 03/12/01



the regul ar suppl enental .

M. Spencer addressed the addition of nursing assistants to the
appropriation noting that nursing assistants could not provide all
of the necessary services, such as admnistering nedication. He
pointed out that the salary increase does not apply to the
certified nursing assistant positions.

Ms. MConnell spoke to the funding requests included in the
commttee substitute for the specific studies, stating that they
are simlar to those planned by the Adm nistration as part of the
Gas Pipeline Policy Council. She noted that the dates listed in the
commttee substitute for the Departnent of Law and the Depart nent
of Revenue that include both FY 01 and FY 02 were not included in
the timeframe for the Departnent of Revenue studies. She suggested
an extended | apse date to ensure conformance with accounting.

Co-Chair Donley stated that if the funds were obligated they would
not | apse.

Ms. MConnell <corrected that if the conpletion of a study is
expected to be June 30 and there is actually a delay, the D vision
of Legislative Audit does not penalize and treats the situation as
an unexpected del ay. However, she pointed out that the fast track
suppl emental is delayed and that the subsequent appropriation would
be received later, thus affecting when the studies could begin. She
stressed that a later conpletion date is therefore known before the
projects begin. She saw the extended |apse date as a technical
adj ust nment .

Ms. McConnell next spoke to the elimnation of travel funds from
the Departnent of Fish and Gane for efforts in the field relating
to the gas pipeline preparation. She assuned that the intent was
for the departnment to obtain those funds el sewhere in its budget.
She stressed that the State Pipeline Ofice does not have general
funds that could be redirected. She suggested the Conmttee
reinstate the requested $21, 000 general funds for the travel costs.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked if anything precluded the governor from using
t he $900, 000 contingency funds toward this effort.

Ms. McConnell responded that the intent is not to use contingency
funds for normal activities. She conpared this to the legislature
using its contingency funds to cover normal travel costs. She
surmsed, "It is only fair to say that if it's going to cost
sonmething to get state pipeline folks out to do their work, we
should be up front and say it's going to cost sonething to have
themtravel ."

SFC-01 (11) 03/12/01



Co-Chair Donley restated his question to ask if the use of
contingency fund was all owable for this purpose.

Ms. MConnell replied that it is no nore |limted than the
| egi slature's use of its contingency fund.

Senator W/l ken noted that the Alaska H ghway Natural Gas Policy
Council held its organi zational neeting the prior week. He wanted
to know how the | egi sl ature woul d be kept abreast of the Council's
efforts, particularly wwth the eight identified areas of focus.

KEN FREEMAN, Speci al Assistant, Gasline and Busi ness Devel opnent,
Ofice of the Governor, testified via tel econference from Anchorage
that the Council was divided into six subcommttees, and that he
woul d share the commttee structure. He assured that he woul d be
avai l abl e to answer any questions regarding the Council's progress.
He added that public notices of upcom ng neetings would be sent to
each nmenber of the legislature and that legislators could listen to
the neetings via tel econference.

Ms. McConnell added that a nethod to provide periodic updates on
the Council's activities would be instituted.

Senator W/ ken requested that he be kept infornmed of what the
Council is working on and especially its intended outcone. He
commented that he is skeptical of "this whole effort.”

Ms. McConnell opined that it is in the state’'s benefit that the
| egi slature, "be very famliar with the work that that group is
undertaking." She pointed out that the Council has outlined a
series of critical issues, sonme of which are shared by the
Committee. She noted that the multiple studies would provide
information essential to the Council's progress.

Senat or Hof fman asked the intent of the chair with regard to
all ow ng nenbers to consider and offer amendnents to the commttee
substitute that was distributed just prior to the neeting's start.
He asked if the chair intended the bill to nove fromthe Commttee
at this hearing, of if the Mnority would have 24 hours to review
t he changes.

Co-Chair Donley stated that the Conmmttee would consider the
anendnments before it and then decide whether to hold or report out
the bill. He noted that the bill is scheduled for a future neeting
and coul d be brought up again at that tine.

AVENDMENT #1: This amendnent increases the appropriation to the

SFC-01 (12) 03/12/01



Departnent of Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent in Section 2, from
$1, 500, 000 to $1, 600,000 and adds a new subsection to read.

(c) $100,000 of the noney described in (a) of this
section is for the local participation of the Gty of Kaktovik
in support of the education efforts of Arctic Power.

Senat or O son noved for adoption.
Wt hout objection or discussion, the amendnent was ADOPTED.

Anendnent #2: This anendnment nakes the foll owi ng changes to Section
4. DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAME of CS HB 117 (FIN) am

Page 2, lines 6-18:

Del et e:

(b) The unexpended and wunobligated balance of the
appropriation made by sec. 131, ch. 139, SLA 1998, page 48,
lines 24 - 30 (Kenai River Area Plan studies - $120,000), not
to exceed $20,000, is reappropriated to the Departnment of Fish
and Gane for the expenses of Board of Fisheries neetings
regardi ng hal i but subsistence regulations for the fiscal year
endi ng June 30, 2001.

(c) The unexpended and wunobligated balance of the
appropriation made by sec. 131, ch. 139, SLA 1998, page 48,
lines 24 - 30 (Kenai River Area Plan studies - $120,000), not
to exceed $35,000, is reappropriated to the Departnent of Fish
and Gane for the expenses of Cook Inlet/Northern Gl f of
Al aska | ocal area fisheries managenent planning for the fiscal
year endi ng June 30, 2001.

(d) If the anmount avail abl e for reappropriation under (b)
and (c) of this section is |ess than $55,000 then the anounts
appropriated in (b) and (c) of this section shall each be
reduced in direct proportion to the anmobunt of the shortfall.

I nsert:

(b) The sum of $20,000 is appropriated fromthe general
fund to the Departnment of Fish and Gane for the expenses of
the Board of Fisheries neetings regardi ng halibut subsistence
regul ations for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2001.

(c) The sum of $35,000 is appropriated fromthe general
fund to the Departnment of Fish and Gane for the expenses of
Cook Inlet/Northern Gulf of Alaska local area fisheries
managenent planning for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2001

Senator Ward stated that he woul d NOT OFFER t hi s anendnent because

the changes were incorporated into the commttee substitute,
version "T".

SFC-01 (13) 03/12/01



Anmendnent #3: This anendnent adds a new subsection to Section 13.
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON AND PUBLIC FACILITIES, of CS HB 117
(FIN) am[Section 14 of the commttee substitute, version "T"] as
foll ows.

(5) the sum of $400,000 from the general fund to
i npl enent the consent decree in Trustees for Al aska versus
H ckel (Copper River Hi ghway case)(Case No. A92-245 ClV
(JKS) (Consol i dated)) .

Senat or Hof f man noved for adopti on.
Co-Chair Kelly objected for the purpose of discussion.

Senat or Hof fman explained that this anmendnent funds the fourth
stage of a court-ordered decree. He referred to acconpanying
docunents that warn that if the decree were not honored, the state
woul d incur additional expense. [Copy on file.] He requested a
representative of the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities detail the consequences of not funding this item

NANCY SLAGLE, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities, testified that
the departnent has conplied with the other three sections of the
consent decree. She stated that the decree inposes a deadline for
the conpletion of environmental projects and that an earlier effort
to do so failed, bringing the issue back to the forefront. She
shared that the intent is to the environnental projects as soon as
possi ble to prevent further delays on other projects in the area.

Senat or Hof f man asked about the additional penalties and interest
charges if the decree is not conplied wth.

Ms. Sl agle was unsure about the cost of penalties, but warned that
the issue could return to court and delay other road and bridge
proj ects.

Senator WArd asked for the nanes of the projects that would be
conpromised if this itemwere not funded.

Ms. Slagle listed a project on the road to the MIlion Dollar
Bridge, and a project on the bridge itself as two of the several
projects that woul d be del ayed.

Senator Leman noted the consent decree requirenent to spend a

speci fied anount of noney. He understood the objective to spend
noney, but if it is to "acconplish some good,"” he suggested that

SFC-01 (14) 03/12/01



t he departnent | ook at other successful nodels such as one in Mat-
Su where young people participated in the work. He el aborated on
the Youth Corps project that taught young people skills using state
supervision. He did not know if this would be inconsistent with the
consent decree, but predicted that it would not be.

Ms. Slagle read fromthe consent decree, "the state shall perform
one or nore environmental projects at a total cost of not |ess than
$400, 000 in accordance with paragraph 16 below and in accordance
with the environnmental projects plan.”™ She noted that the
environnmental projects plan was attached to the anendnent, |abel ed
"Attachment B". [Copy on file.] She relayed that extensive
negotiations resulted in an agreenment with the US Arny Corps of
Engineers in the fall of 2000 as to which projects were acceptabl e.
She added that descriptions of the projects were also included with
t he amendnent. [Copy on file.]

Senat or Lerman thought all the proposed projects were appropriate
but thought that if savings could be realized then additional
projects could be undertaken. He suggested "thinking outside the
box. "

Senat or Hof f man asked why this itemwas requested in the fast track
suppl enment al budget.

Ms. Slagle explained this was hol ding up other projects and that
the departnment did not want to mss an additional construction
season and delay the projects another year.

Aroll call was taken on the notion.
I N FAVOR: Senator Hof fman, Senator d son

OPPCOSED: Senat or Ward, Senator W/ ken, Senator Austerman, Senator
Green, Senator Leman, Co-Chair Kelly and Co-Chair Donl ey

The notion FAILED (2-6-1)
The anmendnent FAILED to be adopted.

Anrendrment #4: This anmendnent inserts a new subsection in Section 3.
DEPARTMENT OF COVMUNITY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, on page 2,
followng line 2 of the conmttee substitute, version "T" as
foll ows.

(c) The sum of $250,000 is appropriated fromthe genera

fund to the Departnment of Community and Econom c Devel opnent
for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2001 and June 30, 2002,

SFC-01 (15) 03/12/01



for paynment as a grant under AS 37.05.316 to Arctic Power for
educational nedia efforts for targeted Congressional districts
to open the coastal plain of the Arctic National WIldlife
Refuge for oil and gas exploration and devel opnent.

Co-Chair Kelly noved for adoption.

Co- Chair Donley spoke to the anendnent he sponsored by rel aying
information he gl eaned fromthe US Congressional del egation during
the previous week. He stated that each of them Representative Don
Young in particular, expressed support for an additiona
appropriation to address nedia education efforts targeted toward
certain congressional districts. Co-Chair Donley stressed that
Representati ve Young has a "chall enging job ahead of hinf educating
hundreds of colleges about ANWR, and that this effort would be
hel pful .

There was no objection and the anendnment was ADOPTED.

Amendment #5: This anmendnment replaces subsection (a) of Section
12. DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE. in the commttee substitute as
fol | ows.

Page 4, line 16:

Del et e:

(a) The sum of $400,000 is appropriated fromstatutory
desi gnated programrecei pts to the Departnent of Revenue,
tax division, for a tax assessnent challenge for the fisca
years ending June 30, 2001, and June 30, 2002.

| nsert:

(a) The sum of $400,000 is appropriated to the
Departnent of Revenue, tax division for a tax assessnent
chal l enge for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2001, and
June 30, 2002, fromthe follow ng sources in the anounts set

out :
FUNDI NG SOURCE AMOUNT
General fund $200, 000
Statutory designated program receipts 200, 000

Co-Chair Kelly noved for adoption.

Co- Chair Donley explained that this amendnent he sponsored deal s
with the issue nentioned earlier in the hearing by the Depart nent
of Revenue. He expressed that the amendnent provides "a reasonabl e
step", and noted that the funding source could be further adjusted
if necessary, after continued discussions with the departnent.

SFC-01 (16) 03/12/01



Senator A son asked if the statutory designated recei pts would cone
fromthose boroughs | ocated al ong the Al yeska Pipeline route.

Co-Chair Donley granted that the appropriation request had
"evol ved" froman original fifty-fifty funding source. He said this
entailed the state and the | ocal governnent each providing half of
the cost of defending the assessnent. He stated that the intent is
to maintain the fifty-fifty split. However, he noted that the
pur pose of the appropriation had changed and that the matter would
need to be investigated further. He suggested the Committee
incorporate the anendnents passed at this hearing into a new
commttee substitute to review at the future neeting.

W t hout objection the anendnment was ADOPTED.

Senator Wl ken referred to M. Heinze' s earlier testinony and the
informati on he provided. [Copy on file.]

AT EASE 2:29 PM/ 2:29 PM

Co-Chair Donley suggested the Commttee could incorporate intent
| anguage into the legislation or offer a letter of intent when the
bill was before the entire Senate body, to reflect the points
rai sed by M. Heinze.

Senator Wlken cited M. Heinze's witten testinony, "I would ask
that the Senate consider adding policy direction |anguage to the
Section 10 appropriation. As | nentioned, a requirenent to report
back to the legislature on any non-Al askan spending may be the
cl earest conmmunication tool to the Know es admnistration
appoi ntees and the bureaucracy. Setting a clear exanple of
accountability for industry would be a major help to assuring that
the benefits of North Sl ope gas devel opnent are Al askani zed."

Senator W1 ken opined that "this commttee, this |legislature and
this governor" should ensure that Arctic Power understands "we
expect qualified Alaskans to be first inline to do that job." He
stressed that every opportunity to reaffirmthis intent should be
realized. He announced that he would prepare intent |anguage for
the bill to address this.

Co- Chair Donley pointed out that M. Heinze expressed his belief
that the governor failed to enforce "his nerger agreenent" in
utilizing Al askan contractors in the construction of the gas to
liquids pilot plant in Kenai.

Amrendnent #6: This anmendnent inserts, "The departnent shall provide
the study to the legislature.” following the provisions related to

SFC-01 (17) 03/12/01



three studies fromthe Departnent of Natural Resources and one by
the Departnent of Revenue in Section 11 and Section 12 of the
comm ttee substitute.

Co-Chair Donley explained that this anmendnent addresses earlier
concerns raised about |egislative access to the studies' results.

Co-Chair Kelly noved for adoption.

The amendnent was ADOPTED wi t hout obj ecti on.

Co- Chair Donl ey announced that the adopted anendnments would be
incorporated into a new commttee substitute and presented to the
Comm ttee once again. He ordered the bill HELD in Cormittee.

#
ADJ QURNIVENT

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey adjourned the neeting at 02:32 PM

SFC-01 (18) 03/12/01



